
 
6/24/25 

 

 1 

Town of Clifton Park Planning Board 
One Town Hall Plaza 

Clifton Park, New York  12065 

(518) 371-6054     FAX (518)371-1136 

   

 

   

PLANNING BOARD   

 

DENISE BAGRAMIAN 

 

                                                MEMBERS 

Chairwoman                                               Emad Andarawis 

                                               Eric Ophardt  

VIDA SHEEHAN                                               Heather Fariello 

Attorney                                               Mario Fantini 

                                               Keith Martin 

PAULA COOPER                                                Lisa Westrick 

Secretary                                                Matthew Luke (alt.) 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning Board Minutes 

    June 24, 2025__ 

 

 

Those present at the June 24, 2025 Planning Board meeting were: 

 

Planning Board:  D. Bagramian, Chairwoman, E. Andarawis, H. Fariello, E. Ophardt,  

K. Martin, L. Westrick,  

 

Those absent were:    M. Fantini, Matthew Luke (alternate) 

 

Those also present were: J. Scavo, Director of Planning 

    W. Lippmann, M J Engineering and Land Surveying, P.C. 

V. Sheehan, Counsel 

    P.  Cooper, Secretary 

 
 

Ms. Bagramian, Chairwoman called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  All in attendance stood for 

recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance.   

 

  

Minutes Approval: 

 

Mr. Ophardt moved, seconded by Ms. Fariello, approval of the minutes of the May 28, 

2025 Planning Board meeting as written.  The motion was unanimously carried.   

 



 
6/24/25 

 

 2 

 

 

Public Hearing:  

#2024-053 100/200 Technology Park Telecommunications Tower  

SUP SBL: 271.-4-13 Applicant is proposing a new telecommunications tower, 

Technology Park (Pvt) Zoned: B1 - Business Non Retail 1, Status: Final Applicant: 

Cellco Partnership dba Verizon Wireless Consultant: Tectonic Engineering Last Seen On: 

03/25/2025 

Ms. Bagramian stated that a SEQRA Negative Declaration was established on March 25, 2025. 

Ms. Bagramian called the public hearing to order at 7:05 p.m. The Secretary read the public 

notice as published in the Daily Gazette on June 4, 2025. 

Consultant/Applicant Presentation: 

Dave Brennan stated he was present for a proposed monopole that is 120’ in height with the 

lightening rod at its highest point. He stated that this is in the B-1 non-retail zone and SEQRA 

was presented in March 2025. Mr. Brennan stated that the applicant went to the ZBA for 

variances needed for the project and the area variances were granted. He stated that to the south 

of the project is Shenendehowa Campus and there is a residential PDD nearby. He stated that this 

would be an improvement to the area where wireless telecommunications coverage is not 

adequate. 

Staff and Professional Comments: 

Certain staff comments were highlighted by John Scavo, Director of Planning & Zoning, and MJ 

Engineering, the Town Designated Engineer. Copies of all remarks read into the record for the 

agenda items are included and attached to these minutes. 

Public Comments:   

No public comment. 

There being no public comment, Ms. Fariello moved, second by Mr. Ophardt, to close the public 

hearing at 7:10 p.m. The motion was unanimously carried.  

 

Planning Board Review: 

Ms. Bagramian stated the application seems straight forward. 

Mr. Ophardt stated this location is the best suited to place the cell tower, and the applicant has 

proven it will be needed.    



 
6/24/25 

 

 3 

Mr. Andarawis stated that all of his questions have been answered, and he appreciates the work 

the applicant has done. 

Mr. Andarawis offered Resolution No. 09 of 2025, seconded by Ms. Fariello to waive the final 

hearing for this application for the 100/200 Technology Park Telecommunications Tower 

approval, and to grant preliminary and final Special Use Permit approval condition upon 

satisfaction of all comments, provided by the Planning Department, Town Designated Engineer, 

and all items listed in the final comment letter issued by the Planning Department. 

Roll Call: 

D. Bagramian - Yes 

E. Andarawis - Yes 

E. Ophardt - Yes 

H. Fariello - Yes 

K. Martin – Absent 

M. Fantini - Absent 

L. Westrick – Yes 

M. Luke (alternate) - Absent 

 

Ayes______5____                                                 Noes: _____0____ 

 

The resolution is carried. 

 

Ms. Fariello moved, second by Mr. Ophardt, to waive the final hearing for this application for 

the site plan review of 100/200 Technology Park Telecommunications Tower, and to grant 

preliminary and final site plan approval conditioned upon satisfaction of all comments provided 

by the Planning Department, Town Designated Engineer, and all items listed in the final 

comment letter issued by the Planning Department. 

  Ayes: __5___  Noes: _0_____  The motion is carried. 

 

Public Hearing:  

#2025-008 Starpoint Church Parking Expansion Site Plan 

 SBL: 277.16-2-21 Applicant is proposing a parking Expansion, 14 Jarose PL , Zoned: 

R1 – Residential Status: Revised Preliminary Applicant: Northstar Church Inc, 

Consultant: ABD Engineers – J. Hitchcock, Jr., Last Seen On: 03/11/2025 



 
6/24/25 

 

 4 

Ms. Bagramian explained the review and approval process to those present, stating that the 

Board was required to render a determination pursuant to SEQRA (State Environmental Quality 

Review Act) prior to conducting a public hearing on this application. She explained that the 

Planning Board would assume Lead Agency status for the project and issue a negative 

declaration as a “formality” which neither granted nor implied approval of the subdivision 

application. Should it be determined that additional environmental review is required, SEQRA 

discussions will be reopened and a decision rendered when deemed appropriate. 

Mr. Ophardt moved, second by Ms. Fariello, to establish the Planning Board as Lead Agency for 

this application, an Unlisted action, and to issue a negative declaration pursuant to SEQRA. 

Ms. Bagramian called the public hearing to order at 7:14 p.m. The Secretary read the public 

notice as published in the Daily Gazette on June 14, 2025. 

Consultant/Applicant Presentation: 

John Hitchcock stated that he is here tonight with some changes from the last time they were 

heard in front of the Planning Board. He stated that the ZBA wanted to look at a right-out only 

onto Grooms Road but the Saratoga Highway Department shot it down due to the proximity of 

Jarose Place. He stated that the ZBA then approved the parking variance. Mr. Hitchcock stated 

they tried to move away from the western boundary as much as possible, and at its closest they 

are 15’ from the property line and it increases from there. Mr. Hitchcock stated they also put in a 

1.5’ berm along the property to help with runoff. He showed the snow storage area indicated on 

the plans to the east end and stated that infiltration tests have been done and are at 21” per hour 

at its fastest. Mr. Hitchcock stated that they are now proposing 68 parking spots and that they are 

looking for approval tonight. Mr. Hitchcock stated that they are trying to fix a problem on their 

own and keep cars off the streets. 

Staff and Professional Comments: 

Certain staff comments were highlighted by John Scavo, Director of Planning & Zoning, and MJ 

Engineering, the Town Designated Engineer. Copies of all remarks read into the record for the 

agenda items are included and attached to these minutes. 

Public Comments:   

Allan Burke, 13 Jarose Place, stated he is one of the original owners in Sunset Woods and before 

this church came, there were woods. Mr. Burke stated that his home is across from the church’s 

driveway, and there are blind spots present, with the potential for a tragedy. 

Anthony LaFleche, 21 Wheeler Drive asked if the applicant could give a 15’ easement on 

Grooms Road for a potential trial. He stated he would hate to see the church do landscaping and 

then have them removed for a trail in the future. Mr. LaFleche asked how far a right out would 

be from Jarose Place. Mr. Hitchcock stated it is about 20’. 



 
6/24/25 

 

 5 

Mary and Mark Raciti, 522 Grooms Road, stated that they have concerns with the water runoff. 

She stated that at the last build-out, the church did they had the same concerns with the runoff 

and the high water table. Ms. Raciti stated they also own 520A Grooms, which is a buildable lot 

and she feels that the water now ponds there a lot and floods on a regular basis. Ms. Raciti stated 

that they were assured by the Town and the applicant that the stormwater management is 

adequate but she feels it is not and the value of her property will decrease with this. Mr. Raciti 

stated the retention pond has 2 pipes coming out of them and this pushes the water onto his 

property. 

James Yandell, 514 Grooms Road requested to have 6 minutes as he would be speaking on 

behalf of the church community. Ms. Bagramian stated he cannot because they have to be fair, 

but another member can come forward for another 3 minutes. Mr. Yandell stated that he is an 

associate pastor at the church and asked everyone in attendance who worships at the church to 

raise their hands for support. Mr. Yandell stated that 150 parishioners wrote to the Town in 

support of the application. He stated that they are all about the safety of the community and this 

is not a new issue. Mr. Yandell stated this is not a new issue as a few years back they asked for 

more parking and the Planning Board had approved some but asked them to wait and see before 

a full build out was approved. He stated they added more services and they are still over capacity 

with parking. Mr. Yandell stated that the parking and occupancy do not coincide and there is an 

average of 30-40 cars on the road per every Sunday service. 

Charles Clem, 103 Drummond Ridge, Ballston Spa stated he is also an associate pastor at the 

church and that the church is doing this on their own for the best interest of all parties. He stated 

that this is a significant cost to the church but they would like to be good neighbors and help 

increase the safety of the road. He stated that the church employs 15 people and the church itself 

brings in shoppers and potential residents. Mr. Clem stated that the church has given $90,000.00 

back to the community and brings people into the Town. He acknowledged the residents’ 

concerns and asked for the same consideration as other applicants. 

Pat Rosestead, 23 Jarose Place stated she does not see the church in use on a daily basis but there 

are 800 cars coming in and out of the street every Sunday. She stated she is also speaking for the 

home that has a potential to be demolished and stated it was built in 1997 for Ms. Jarose by her 

mother and she had sold it after her mother died. Ms. Rosestead stated that Ms. Jarose sold it to a 

church that promised her it would not be demolished. Ms. Rosestead stated that she spoke 

directly to Ms. Jarose and she stated that she is very disappointed that the home may go. 

Wayne Lupine, Grooms Road stated he lives next door to the application. He stated that he has 

sent letters to the Town about problems and they have sent them to the applicant about water 

problems. He stated that the applicant and engineers can run numbers but he has to live it and see 

it. 



 
6/24/25 

 

 6 

Divya Penmatsa, 21 Jarose Place stated she is here for all of the neighbors and that the growth of 

the church is too much. Ms. Penmatsa asked if the church would be able to expand again and 

asked for a guarantee that there would be no more. She stated she did not sign up for this when 

she bought the home and feels that the only problem is the 11 am service. She asked the church 

to look at opening another location. 

Mr. Martin arrived at the meeting at 7:45 p.m. 

There being no additional public comment, Ms. Fariello moved, second by Mr. Ophardt, to close 

the public hearing at 7:46 p.m. The motion was unanimously carried.  

Planning Board Review: 

Ms. Bagramian read from the Public Government restrictions for religious institutions and 

referred to RLUIPA. She stated that with a normal review this would not take place. She stated 

that as a Planning Board they try alleviating as much of the burden as possible. 

Ms. Bagramian stated that there will always be issues with traffic. Mr. Hitchcock stated one 

resident had concerns with a wet property and the 2 pipes. He stated that the stormwater is 

designed this way and is adequate water control and they control the runoff to equal or less than 

what it was. Mr. Hitchcock stated there are wetlands on the property and in the area so the land 

will naturally be wet. He stated that the church has property on Route 146 A but there is no water 

or sewer available there so they cannot build on that land. 

Ms. Bagramian stated that she was told the Planning Board had restricted the applicant to not 

renting or selling the home, this is untrue. Pastor Lilly stated that he was given this restriction by 

an organization within the Town, not necessarily the Planning Board. Ms. Bagramian asked 

where the deed was so that they could look at it. Mr. Hitchcock stated they don’t have it on hand. 

Mr. Martin stated that if it is on the deed then the record has to be somewhere. Pastor Lilly stated 

the property line was on the porch of the home previously. 

Ms. Bagramian stated there is a difference between wait and see and wants and needs. She stated 

the community keeps bringing up the same concerns with traffic and water. She stated that the 

Board relies on engineers for the numbers, and asked if they made an error. She stated that the 

traffic and water should be mitigated on the site and asked if this would completely mitigate the 

concerns. Pastor Lilly stated that he feels this would and no one is asking them to do this, they 

are trying to be responsible and proactive to make it safer for everyone.  

Ms. Bagramian asked if the applicant would agree to no parking signs if the Town agrees as 

well. Pastor Lilly stated he would not as this would impact the residents. 



 
6/24/25 

 

 7 

Ms. Fariello asked how much their max capacity is. Pastor Lilly stated a total of 770 people but 

many are children that do not drive. He stated that they try to help with the parking on the street 

but they cannot always eliminate the problems. 

Ms. Bagramian asked if there was still parking going on the street. Mr. Hitchcock stated there is 

and if they are approved they could fit in the property. Ms. Bagramian asked if people are paid or 

volunteer to help with the parking as there are companies that can be hired to do this. Ms. 

Bagramian asked if the traffic people go to Grooms Road to help as well. Pastor Lilly stated he 

does not know as he is inside of the church while parishioners come and go. 

Ms. Bagramian asked how people are being trained to help control traffic. Pastor Lilly stated he 

does not know. Chris Santilli stated that he helps train people and helps people who help with the 

traffic control. He stated that there is no DOT training for on the property and they stay within 

the parking lot and help fill empty spaces. Mr. Santilli stated they do not go into the road but stay 

at the exits and entranceways he feels they are not allowed. 

Mr. Martin stated that the people who help with the traffic go onto Jarose Place where the 

problem is. Pastor Lilly agrees that there are traffic concerns. 

Ms. Bagramian stated that she feels this will have the same problem down the road and read 

from a letter sent to the Town by Emily Hortsman. Ms. Bagramian stated that a medical 

emergency could not be adequately addressed and this is a concern. Pastor Lilly stated he will 

reach out to the residents because he feels badly they experienced this. 

Ms. Bagramian asked if there would be any more expansion on the property if this site plan is 

approved. Mr. Hitchcock stated there would not be as the wetlands and buffer areas take up the 

rest of the space. 

Mr. Martin asked if the additional parking they are asking for will be the full build-out for the 

site. Pastor Lilly stated that it is for parking but they have not explored the building. Mr. Martin 

stated that it is a concern if the applicant comes back for a building expansion and no additional 

parking is available. 

Mr. Ophardt stated that based on Northstar’s previous parking expansions, whenever parking is 

added it tends to invites more parishioners to each service, and he is concerned the church may 

find itself back in the same parking situation in the near future.  He stated that he agrees that 

parking is necessary, but asked what the Church’s future expansion and parking plans are.  

Pastor Lilly stated that right now safety is his biggest concern. Mr. Ophardt stated that he does 

not want to see the church leave, but also feels it won’t be successful if it doesn’t have a future 

plan for expansion. 

Ms. Fariello stated she appreciates them getting off the road, it is not a great idea but it makes 

sense. She asked the applicant if they foresee growth and moving services to streaming in the 



 
6/24/25 

 

 8 

children’s area or to a satellite location. Pastor Lilly stated they do not know right now, he stated 

the church is 22 years old and growth was regularly 10% but when they moved to this location 

the growth increased. 

Mr. Andarawis stated that this solves today's problem, but at some point the use may be far too 

big for the lot. He stated it is great that they are growing but they may outgrow the site and may 

need even more parking. 

Mr. Martin asked if the applicant has looked at the strategic planning process and gauged where 

they will be in 5-10 years and this may have been helpful if it was done years ago. Pastor Lilly 

stated the board does have a planning process and they came for children’s classrooms first and 

now they are back for the rest. 

Mr. Ophardt stated it is great that they are growing as a church community, but he would like to 

see the church work with the Town of Clifton Park to develop a future growth plan.  He thanked 

them for working to remove the vehicles from being parked on Jarose Place during church 

services.  He asked what the Church’s next plans are. 

Ms. Bagramian asked if they could review the landscaping. Mr. Hitchcock stated they are 

planting spruces along the west side and a privacy fence on the west near the shed. He stated that 

on Grooms Road there will be a mix of spruce and other plantings with not much to the east as 

there is where snow storage would take place.  

Mr. Andarawis stated that the home would be removed and replaced with parking so landscaping 

is necessary and needs to continue to be maintained. He stated It is 31’ to the edge of pavement 

to the plantings so there is also room for a trail. 

Mr. Ophardt asked if trees were added to the Lupine property as well as the berm and asked 

whether the homeowner was happy with this proposal. Mr. Hitchcock stated he did not directly 

contact the owner. Mr. Ophardt then asked Mr. Lupine if he was ok with the proposed changes?   

Mr. Lupine stated his primary concern wasn’t the buffer, so much as the water runoff from the 

church parking lots.   Mr. Ophardt asked if the applicant would consider fencing and plantings 

for esthetics. Mr. Lupine stated that the fence would hide the parking better. Mr. Ophardt asked 

if he would prefer a fence over the berm. Mr. Lupine stated he would like the fence to the 

telephone pole to hide the parking. Mr. Ophardt stated he was concerned that a fence to the 

telephone pole might obstruct motorist sight lines looking west from Jarose Place. Mr. Hitchcock 

stated he can put a fence to the edge of the parking to the north but there would be a gap between 

the shed and the fencing. 

Ms. Bagramian asked if 520A could be mitigated. Mr. Hitchcock stated that when they are out 

for construction thy can fluff the ground but there are DEC wetlands back there that they cannot 

touch. He stated the additional parking is not attached to the stormwater management area in the 



 
6/24/25 

 

 9 

rear so it should not add more water to the rear of the site and there are 3 dry wells to the 

northeast to help with Jarose Place. 

Ms. Fariello stated there should be annual training for the porous pavement to keep it functioning 

properly. 

Mr. Ophardt asked how they plan to block the glare from vehicle headlights in the parking lot 

from spilling onto Grooms Road. Mr. Hitchcock stated they have red cedars and pines on the 

planting plan. 

 

Mr. Ophardt moved, second by Mr. Andarawis, to waive the final hearing for this application for 

the site plan review of Starpoint Church Parking Expansion Site Plan, and to grant preliminary 

and final site plan approval conditioned upon satisfaction of all comments provided by the 

Planning Department, Town Designated Engineer, and all items listed in the final comment letter 

issued by the Planning Department. 

 Conditions: 

1. Satisfaction of MJE and Mr. Reese’s comments.       

2. Add an 8’ fence to boarder the Lupin property.      

3. Perpetual maintenance of the landscaping and porous pavement. 

  Ayes: __7___  Noes: ____0__  The motion is carried. 

 

Old Business: 

#2025-015 VP Golf Club 5 Lot Single-family Subdivision Main Street 

SBL: 264.-3-94.1 Applicant is proposing a 5 lot residential subdivision, 924 Main Street Zoned: 

PDD - Planned Development District, Status: Preliminary Applicant: Country Club Golf 

Consultant: Environmental Design Partnership – J. Dannible Last Seen On: 04/22/2025 

Consultant/Applicant Presentation: 

Joe Dannible, EDP showed a map of the property with the area to be subdivided. He stated this 

would be 5 single family homes with 5 driveways on Main Street over 5 acres of land. Mr. 

Dannible stated there are single family homes in the area so this would fit in. He stated he has 

been talking to Saratoga County DPW due to drainage concerns and utility connections but there 

are no concerns with the driveways. He stated he is still waiting for a letter from the County for 

additional comments. 

Staff and Professional Comments: 



 
6/24/25 

 

 10 

Certain staff comments were highlighted by John Scavo, Director of Planning & Zoning, and MJ 

Engineering, the Town Designated Engineer. Copies of all remarks read into the record for the 

agenda items are included and attached to these minutes. 

Public Comments: 

No public comment. 

 

Planning Board Review: 

Mr. Andarawis stated it is appropriate that they face Main Street and asked if there is a build to 

line as the homes in the area are close to the road and worth keeping within the character of the 

neighborhood. Mr. Dannible stated a variance is hard to get for an SUP. Mr. Andarawis 

requested the buildings go as far forward as possible. 

Mr. Ophardt asked which direction does the water flow through the culvert beneath Main Street.  

Mr. Dannible stated that the culvert flows east to west onto the applicant’s property, but there are 

no wetlands on the site, and it is all developable.  Mr. Ophardt asked about potential drainage 

impacts to the houses on the east side of Main Street.   Mr. Dannible stated the homes on the east 

side of the street are higher than Main Street, and the ground is sandy in the area.   

Ms. Bagramian stated this is a fitting project for the area and water needs to be figured out. 

 

Old Business: 

#2024-045 1759 Route 9 Automotive Center Site Plan SBL: 272.1-2-4  

Applicant is proposing construction of an Automotive Center, 1759 Us Rt 9 Zoned: B4A 

- Highway Business/Restricted Retail, Status: Preliminary Applicant: Keeler, Consultant: 

Advanced Engineering – N. Costa Last Seen On: 11/13/2024 

Consultant/Applicant Presentation: 

Nick Costa, Advanced Engineering, showed a rendering of the lot and stated this parcel is part of 

a larger one. He stated it is 8 acres that would have a Hyundai building which would be 27,000 sf 

and 499 parking spots. Mr. Costa stated they would be extending the existing drive onto the site 

and parking would mainly be for inventory. Mr. Costa stated there would be access from Biette 

Road and they would connect to public water and sewer. He showed the stormwater on the 

renderings and stated they will follow Town Code for screening. Mr. Costa stated this parcel is 

zoned for car dealerships and they would have 40% green space. 

Staff and Professional Comments: 

Certain staff comments were highlighted by John Scavo, Director of Planning & Zoning, and MJ 

Engineering, the Town Designated Engineer. Copies of all remarks read into the record for the 

agenda items are included and attached to these minutes. 



 
6/24/25 

 

 11 

Public Comments: 

No public comment. 

Planning Board Review: 

Ms. Bagramian stated his is a nice looking project and she likes the landscaping plan. Mr. Costa 

stated they are keeping with code and they have a mix of 2 types of spruce and dogwood. Mr. 

Scavo suggested introducing some native trees as well. 

Mr. Andarawis asked what trees would be in the parking islands. Mr. Costa stated they are 

proposed as dogwoods. 

Mr. Ophardt stated at the previous Planning Board meeting for this project there had been a 

discussion about aligning the applicant’s new driveway with Parkwood Plaza’s driveway on the 

west side of US Route 9 for a future traffic signal.  Mr. Costa state that the applicant will be 

using the existing driveway for now, but when the rest of the site is developed, they will be 

making a boulevard entrance and will align it with Parkwood Plaza’s driveway at that time.   Mr. 

Ophardt stated he would like to see a traffic study completed as MJE has requested.   Mr. Martin 

stated he agrees with Mr. Ophardt.   

Ms. Bagramian stated she would like to see a dedicated light turn land and discuss sidewalks 

throughout the property and on Route 9. 

Mr. Andarawis stated he would like landscaping considered with the walking path. 

Mr. Ophardt expressed his concern with the possible use of Biette Road as an entrance and exit 

from the applicant’s site.  Mr. Costa stated it would be only for deliveries, and regular traffic 

would enter and exit the site utilizing the US Route 9 driveway.   He stated the parking near the 

side road is all inventory and would be used mainly for emergency response. Mr. Scavo stated 

that there should be a sign on Route 9 and that Mr. DeSimone from the Town liked the wider 

access from the side road. 

 

New Business: 

#2025-027 Miller Road Flex Space Phase 2 Site Plan  

SBL: 270.-2-3.121 Applicant is proposing the development of additional flex space as 

part of Phase 2 of the project, Rt 146 Zoned: B5 - Corporate Commerce, Status: Concept 

Applicant: Miller Road Storage LLC - MaryJo Satterlee, Consultant: Advanced 

Engineering – N. Costa 

Consultant/Applicant Presentation: 



 
6/24/25 

 

 12 

Nick Costa, Advance Engineers stated that the Phase I is currently under construction and they 

are now looking at Phase II. He stated that this will solely be flex space and will connect to the 

roadway and Phase I. He stated that the site is similar to Miller Road and everything is sloped 

away from 146 and in the same area as Miller Road. Mr., Costa stated this would be similar in 

design and elevations to Phase I, water and sewer connections will be made and the stormwater 

management will be at the end of the development similar to Phase I. Mr. Costa showed to 

everyone in attendance the flow of the stormwater and its connections. 

 

Staff and Professional Comments: 

Certain staff comments were highlighted by John Scavo, Director of Planning & Zoning, and MJ 

Engineering, the Town Designated Engineer. Copies of all remarks read into the record for the 

agenda items are included and attached to these minutes. 

Public Comments:   

No public comments. 

Planning Board Review: 

Mr. Martin asked what the species of trees are in the berm area. Mr. Costa stated they are similar 

to evergreens but they did not decide yet on the species. Mr. Martin stated this is not an optimal 

layout due to the view shed and ants to see thicker landscaping along 146. Ms. Bagramian agrees 

with Mr. Martin’s comment. 

Mr. Andarawis stated it is important to evaluate the views and buffer the project but also keep 

the land open. 

Mr. Ophardt asked if there are berms being proposed. Mr. Costa stated there is grading right now 

as this is a concept plan only tonight. 

 

New Business: 

#2025-028 MacElroy Rd Solar SUP & Site Plan (Stryker)  

SBL: 264.-3-5.1 Applicant is proposing a 5 MW ac community solar project, Mac Elroy 

RD Zoned: CR - Conservation Residential, Status: Concept Applicant: Stryker Family 

Limited, Consultant: Tetra Tech Inc. 

Consultant/Applicant Presentation: 

Bill Chan stated he is here tonight for a concept plan for an SUP and site plan in the CR zone. 

Mr. Chan went over business dealings and stated they would like to develop a 5MW community 



 
6/24/25 

 

 13 

solar project over 25 acres of land with 19 of the acres being fenced in. He stated that this could 

run 800 homes with pollution free energy. Mr. Chan stated he construction process would be 

about 5 months and the site would be restored with a decommissioning plan. Mr. Chan stated 

there would be 13,500 mounted solar panels with a 7 foot high fence. Mr. Chan showed the site 

plan for everyone in attendance and showed the natural and added screening rendering. Mr. Chan 

stated there would be a 100’ buffer for the wetlands and all the setbacks are being met. Mr. Chan 

stated there would be 2 additional poles on the property and there would be a retention basin for 

the stormwater management area. 

Staff and Professional Comments: 

Certain staff comments were highlighted by John Scavo, Director of Planning & Zoning, and MJ 

Engineering, the Town Designated Engineer. Copies of all remarks read into the record for the 

agenda items are included and attached to these minutes. 

Public Comments:   

No public comments. 

Planning Board Review: 

Ms. Bagramian stated she would like to see a visual impact from the road and a landscape plan. 

Mr. Westrick asked if the homes would be able to see this from their yards or second floors. 

Mr. Ophardt pointed out that the visual buffer shown on the plans between McElroy Road and 

the applicant’s solar panels consists of a thin row of Sumac trees, which will lose their leaves 

during the winter months.   Mr. Ophardt suggested the applicant remove the existing vegetation 

and consider replacement them with a visual screen of pine trees.   Mr. Chan stated he can 

investigate this request.   

Mr. Martin stated that this field had rotated soy and corn throughout the years and there is deer 

that come thru here but other species do as well and he wants a provision for wildlife. Mr. Chan 

stated he is unsure if a large deer or animal size would work but they have talked about space 

under the fence for smaller wildlife. Mr. Martin stated he has seen it done before but it would 

decrease the number of panels on the site and asked how many panels are the minimum. Mr. 

Chan stated he does not think they can reduce more. 

Mr. Andarawis asked what the hosting capacity is. Mr. Chan stated it is 6.8MW/DC now and 

5MW total. Mr. Andarawis asked if this is the biggest the site can do and have a minimum count. 

Ms. Bagramian asked if there would be batteries on the site. Mr. Chan sated there would be and 

they need a lot of panels to help the batteries. Ms. Bagramian stated if they add batteries in the 

future they would have to come back to the Planning Board for approval. 



 
6/24/25 

 

 14 

Mr. Andarawis asked why the applicant is not using track panels. Mr. Chan stated that the design 

would then get more complicated and they would have less panels. Mr. Andarawis asked if this 

is the best available technology and the minimal land footprint needed. Mr. Chan stated it is. Mr. 

Andarawis asked for the data sheets for the panels and he is looking for the Rohaus stamping. 

Mr. Chan stated he will look into this. Mr. Andarawis sated it is worth having a discussion on 

land preservation versus clear cutting. Mr. Scavo stated DEC has waived the buffer for this select 

smaller potential and other sites on this land would have more of an impact on the wetlands and 

have a higher tree removal count. Mr. Andarawis stated he would like a pole visual and regular 

visuals for the push base due to having to have poles across the road. 

Mr. Martin asked if the solar energy is only available to National Grid customers or if NYSEG 

customers could subscribe to this. Mr. Chan stated it would be only for National Grid customers. 

 

 

New Business: 

#2025-029 Village Plaza Apartments Site Plan  

SBL: 272.-1-44.1 Applicant is proposing construction of an apartment building, 19 

Clifton Country RD Zoned: B3 - Neighborhood Business, Status: Concept Applicant: The 

Windsor Companies, Consultant: EDP – J. Dannible 

Consultant/Applicant Presentation: 

Joe Dannible stated he is here tonight with Brett Blazer and Windsor Development. He stated 

this application is for a parcel in the exit 9 area and they are looking at a parking lot in front of 

Old Brick Furniture in the TC-5 zone. Mr. Dannible stated that this zone allows for a mixed use 

building which the first floor would be retail and 7 residential units on the second and theirs 

floors. He stated there would be shared parking with the plaza and the total square footage would 

be 25,000 sf and the footprint would be 9,000 sf. Mr. Dannible stated the shop fronts would be 

facing Southside Drive and they plan to construct a sidewalk to connect to the existing one and 

will lead to the Town Park. Mr. Dannible stated they are also proposing parallel parking on both 

roads and street trees for landscaping. He stated the project will connect to public water and 

sewer and they still need to look at stormwater. He stated he is here tonight to establish TAC 

meetings and showed the elevations as well as rendering for each floor. 

Staff and Professional Comments: 

Certain staff comments were highlighted by John Scavo, Director of Planning & Zoning, and MJ 

Engineering, the Town Designated Engineer. Copies of all remarks read into the record for the 

agenda items are included and attached to these minutes. 

Public Comments:   



 
6/24/25 

 

 15 

No public comments. 

Planning Board Review: 

Ms. Bagramian stated that this is a good use of space as the parking lot there is never full. She 

asked if it would be retail or restraint space for the first floor. Mr. Dannible stated he has no 

tenants yet but they could entertain having food service at the location and could flip the building 

to accommodate a patio. Mr. Martin stated he likes that idea better. 

Mr. Andarawis stated he likes the project a lot as the parking lot will be repurposed. 

Mr. Ophardt stated he liked the applicant’s proposed site for infill mixed use development.  He 

liked the proposed on-street parking and the sidewalk link with both Druthers, and the Town 

Center Park.   

Discussion Items: 

 None 

 

Ms. Fariello moved, seconded by Mr. Andarawis, adjournment of the meeting at 10:13 p.m.  The 

motion was unanimously carried.  

 

The next meeting of the Planning Board will be held as scheduled on July 8, 2025. 

 

 

 

       Respectfully submitted, 

 

Paula Cooper 

        

       Paula Cooper, Secretary 



 

ATTACHED: 

PROFESSIONAL STAFF, TOWN 

DESIGNATED ENGINEER & ADVISORY 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
































































	PB Minutes 6-24-25 Final
	6-24-25 Planning Board Minutes with comments
	comment attachment page
	6-24-25 Planning Board Minutes with comments
	6-24-25 Draft Planning Board Minutes
	6-24-25 Agenda and Comment Packet
	6-24-25 Planning Board Agenda Updated
	SUP25-000008
	SUP25-000005
	SUB25-000009
	SPR25-000025
	SPR25-000023
	SOL25-000001
	SPR25-000024




